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Department of Agriculture, Food and the Marine

From: Environmental Co-ordination (Inbox) <Environmental_Co-ordination@agriculture.goviie>
Sent: Tuesday, March 8, 2022 9:54 AM

To: David Clarke <David.Clarke@abo-wind.com>

Subject: RE: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

Hello

The following are the comments from the Department of Agriculture, Food & the Marine in relation to the
proposed development:

If the proposed development will involve the felling or removal of any trees, the developer must obtain a
Felling License from this Department before trees are felled or removed. A Felling Licence application
form can be obtained from Felling Section, Department of Agriculture, Food and the Marine,
Johnstown Castle Estate, Co. Wexford. Email: felling.forestservice@agriculture.gov.ie or Web gov.ie -
Tree Felling Licences (www.gov.ie)

A Felling Licence granted by the Minister for Agriculture, Food and the Marine provides authority under
the Forestry Act 2014 to fell or otherwise remove a tree or trees and/or to thin a forest for silvicultural
reasons. The Act prescribes the functions of the Minister and details the requirements, rights and
obligations in relation to felling licences. The principal set of regulations giving further effect to the
Forestry Act 2014 are the Forestry Regulations 2017 (S.I. No. 191 of 2017).

The developer should take note of the contents of Felling and Reforestation Policy document which
provide a consolidated source of information on the legal and regulatory framework relating to tree
felling; gov.ie - Tree Felling Licences (www.gov.ie) As this development is within forest lands, particular
attention should be paid to deforestation, turbulence felling and the requirement to afforest alternative
lands.

In order to ensure regulated forestry operations in Ireland accord with the principles of sustainable forest
management (SFM), as well fulfilling the requirements of other relevant environmental protection laws,
the Department (acting through its Forest Service division) must undertake particular consultations, and
give certain matters full consideration during the assessment of individual Felling Licence applications.
This includes consultation with relevant bodies, the application of various protocols and procedures (e.g.
Forest Service Appropriate Assessment Procedure), and the requirement for applicants on occasion to
provide further information (e.g. a Natura Impact Statement).

Consequently, when the Forest Service is considering an application to fell trees, the following applies:

The interaction of these proposed works with the environment locally and more widely, in addition to
potential direct and indirect impacts on designated sites and water, is assessed. Consultation with relevant
environmental and planning authorities may be required where specific sensitivities arise (e.g. local
authorities, National Parks & Wildlife Service, Inland Fisheries Ireland, and the National Monuments Service);

Where a tree Felling Licence application is received, the Department will publish a notice of the application
before making a decision on the matter. The notice shall state that any person may make a submission to the
Department within 30 days from the date of the notice. The notices are published online at: gov.ie - Felling
Licence Applications (www.gov.ie)

Third parties that make a submission or observation will be informed of the decision to grant or refuse the
licence, and on request, details of the conditions attached to the licence, the main reasons and considerations
on which the decision to grant or refuse the licence was based, and where conditions are attached to any
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licence, the reasons for the conditions. Both third parties and applicants will be also informed of their right to
appeal any decision within 14 days to the Forestry Appeals Committee. Felling Liceénce decision are published
online at: gov.ie - Felling Licence Decisions (www.gov.ie)

It is important to note that when applying to a Local Authority, or An Bord Pleanaia, for planning
permission where developments are:

a) subject to an EIA procedure (including screening in the case of a sub-threshold developmentjand any
resulting requirement to produce an EIAR; and/or

b) subject to an Appropriate Assessment procedure (including screening) and any resulting requirement
to a Natura Impact Statement (NIS); and

c) the proposed development in its construction or operational phases, or any works ancillary thereto,
would directly or indirectly involve the felling and replanting of trees, deforestation for the purposes of
conversion to another type of land use, or replacement of broadleaf high forest by conifer species,

that there is a requirement inter alia under the EIA Directive for an overall assessment of the effects of the
project or the alteration thereof on the environment to be undertaken, including the direct and indirect
environmental impact of the project; and

pursuant to Article 2(3) of the EIA Directive, the Department of Agriculture, Food and the Marine strongly
recommends that, notwithstanding the fact that a parallel consent in the form of felling licence may also have
to be applied for, any EIAR and/or NIS produced in connection with the application for planning permission to
the Local Planning Authority or An Bord Pleanala, should include an assessment of the impact of and measures,
as appropriate, to prevent, mitigate or compensate for any significant adverse effects direct or indirect
identified on the environment arising from such felling and replanting of trees, deforestation for the purposes
of conversion to another type of land use, or replacement of broadleaf high forest by conifer species.

Kind regards

Cathy Hewitt

Executive Officer

An tAonad um Chomhordu Timpeallachta, An Rann6ég um Athra Aeraide agus Beartas Bithfhuinnimh,
Environmental Co-ordination Unit | Climate Change & Bioenergy Policy Division |

An Roinn Talmhaiochta, Bia agus Mara

Department of Agriculture, Food and the Marine

Pailliun A, Pairc Gné Grattan, Bothar Atha Cliath, Port Laoise, Co Laoise, R32 K857

Pavilion A, Grattan Business Park, Dublin Road, Portlaocise, Co Laois, R32 K857

T +353 (0)57 868 9915 environmentalco-ordination@agriculture.gov.ie

www.agriculture.gov.ie

From: David Clarke <David.Clarke@abo-wind.com>
Sent: Tuesday 8 February 2022 13:26
Subject: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

CAUTION: This Email originated from Outside of this department. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe. Otherwise Please Forward
any suspicious Emails to Notify.Cyber@agriculture.gov.ie .

Dear Consultee,

ABO Wind Ireland Ltd. (ABO Wind) are seeking to develop a Wind Farm within the townlands of Keerglen, Co. Mayo.
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Accordingly, we have commenced the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) procass to support a forthcoming
planning application that will be submitted to Mayo County Council. The proposed wingd. farm site is located circa
5.5 km to the south of Ballycastle and 15 km north of the village of Crossmolina, County Mayo.

Further details of the proposed project can be found in the attached Scoping Report. A Site<Location Plan, Site
Layout Plan and Grid Connection Route Drawing are also attached for your information.

We are consulting with you on this proposal as it may be of interest to you (or your organisation). While“you will be
presented with the opportunity to make a submission on the proposed development as part of the statutory
planning process, we wanted to engage with you early in the process to make you aware of the emerging proposals
and to provide you the opportunity to comment as necessary. If there are any key issues which you consider should
be addressed during the preparation of the Environmental Impact Assessment Report (EIAR) we would welcome
your input at this stage.

Should this consultation request be directed to another contact within your organisation we would be grateful if
you could forward this information on to them, or respond to this email and provide us with the appropriate
contact.

If you have any queries, or require any additional information, please do not hesitate to get in touch.
Kind regards,

David
David Clarke
Junior Project Manager

Unit 3, Aspen Court
Cornelscourt

Dublin

D18 K400
David.Clarke@abo-wind.com
Phone: +353 (0)1 289 08 45
Mobile: +353 (0)86 2363564

25 years WIND

Incorporated in Ireland as a private company limited by shares under Certificate No. 437476

The information contained in this message is confidential or protected by law. If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender and delete this message. Any unauthorised copying of this message or
unauthorised distribution of the information contained herein is prohibited.
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L) = RE: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm - Message (HTML)

File Message  Help Q  Tell me what you want to do

= m" lEII "j q = [5] Meeting D
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0 Junk~ Archive | Reply Reply Forward
: All

Delete Respond

RE: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

E ordination (Inbox) <Environmental_Co-ordination@agriculture.gov.ie>

Failte Ireland

Hello David,

Thank you for your email regarding the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) for the proposed wind
farm site located circa 5.5 km to the south of Ballycastle and 15 km north of the village of Crossmolina,
County Mayo.

Please see attached a copy of Failte Ireland’s Guidelines for the Treatment of Tourism in an EIA, which
you may find informative for the preparation of the Environmental Impact Assessment for the proposed
project. The purpose of this report is to provide guidance for those conducting Environmental Impact
Assessment and compiling an Environmental Impact Assessment Reports (EIAR), or those assessing
EIARs, where the project involves tourism or may have an impact upon tourism. These guidelines are
non-statutory and act as supplementary advice to the EPA EIAR Guidelines outlined in section 2.

Regards,
Yvonne

Yvonne Jackson
Product Developmen-Environment & Planning Support | Failte Ireland

88-95 Amiens Street, Dublin 1, D01 WR86
Currently working Remotely | M +353 (0)86 0357590

N\ Failte
*Jéi Ireland
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LinkedIn | Twitter | YouTube | Facebook

A
L]

o4

From: David Clarke <David.Clarke@abo-wind.com>
Sent: Tuesday 8 February 2022 13:26
Subject: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

[ATTENTION] This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.
Dear Consultee,

ABO Wind Ireland Ltd. (ABO Wind) are seeking to develop a Wind Farm within the townlands of Keerglen,
Co. Mayo.

Accordingly, we have commenced the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) process to support a
forthcoming planning application that will be submitted to Mayo County Council. The proposed wind farm
site is located circa 5.5 km to the south of Ballycastle and 15 km north of the village of Crossmolina,
County Mayo.

Further details of the proposed project can be found in the attached Scoping Report. A Site Location Plan,
Site Layout Plan and Grid Connection Route Drawing are also attached for your information.

We are consulting with you on this proposal as it may be of interest to you (or your organisation). While
you will be presented with the opportunity to make a submission on the proposed development as part of
the statutory planning process, we wanted to engage with you early in the process to make you aware of
the emerging proposals and to provide you the opportunity to comment as necessary. If there are any key
issues which you consider should be addressed during the preparation of the Environmental Impact
Assessment Report (EIAR) we would welcome your input at this stage.

Should this consultation request be directed to another contact within your organisation we would be
grateful if you could forward this information on to them, or respond to this email and provide us with the
appropriate contact.

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

The information contained in this message is confidential or protected by law. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender afd’delete this message.
Any unauthorised copying of this message or unauthorised distribution of the information contained herein is prohibited.

S v RE Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm - Message (HTML)
3 Message  Help Q  Tell me what you want to do
= T 7 57 [ [EMeei
E Il B | 53 & g B | 4
i = oM
e 3 More~

Archive | Reply Reply
Al

Delete Respond

RE: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

) 5 Reply All
s <planning.applicati b

\ Failte
% Ireland

T

Irish Water

Good morning David,
| hope you are well today.

Please find attached Irish Waters response to your EIA scoping request relating to your forthcoming
planning application for a wind farm

development located circa 5.5 km to the south of Ballycastle and 15 km north of the village of Crossmolina,
County Mayo.

If you need anything else, please let me know.

Kind regards,

T
B .T:J;

Cillian Claffey B.A, MPian
Development Management Planning

Uisce Eireann , ,
Teach Colvill, 24-26 Sraid Thalboid, Baile Atha Cliath 1, DO1 NP86, Eire
Irish Water
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Colvill House, 24-26 Talbot Street, Dublin 1, D01 NP86, Ireland

T+ 018925187

M +353 89 260 3904
cillian.claffey@water.ie
www.water.ie

Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn

From: David Clarke <David.Clarke@abo-wind.com>
Sent: Tuesday 8 February 2022 13:26

Sub'|ect: Consultation - Keerilen Wind Farm

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
site is located circa 5.5 km to the south of Ballycastle and 15 km north of the village of Crossmolina, County
Mayo.

Further details of the proposed project can be found in the attached Scoping Report. A Site Location Plan,
Site Layout Plan and Grid Connection Route Drawing are also attached for your information.

We are consulting with you on this proposal as it may be of interest to you (or your organisation). While you
will be presented with the opportunity to make a submission on the proposed development as part of the
statutory planning process, we wanted to engage with you early in the process to make you aware of the
emerging proposals and to provide you the opportunity to comment as necessary. If there are any key
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

ABO
25 years WIND
Incorporated in Ireland as a private company limited by shares under Certificate No. 437476

The information contained in this message is confidential or protected by law. If you are not the intended
8
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recipient, please contact the sender and delete this message. Any unauthorised copying of this message or
unauthorised distribution of the information contained herein is prohibited.

FW: Irish Wate

-------
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JISCE

LIRTARN | IRTEH

Ulgoe Elreann

Unit 3, Aspen Court Boeca OF 5000 2
Cornelscourt Sienibs Y
Dublin fe
D1B Kd{]ﬂ irish W absr

FC Sousiia

Dubain 1

DOl WALT
oM February 2022 el

T: 435304 B8 25000
T:+353 01 82 2E0aT

v water je

Re: EIA Scoping Request — Proposad wind farm development within the townlands
of Keerglen, Co. Mayo.

Dear Mr Clarke,

Irish Water has received notification of your Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
scoping request relating to your forthcoming planning application for a “wind farm
site” located circa 5.5 km to the south of Ballycastle and 15 km north of the vilage
of Crossmolina, County Mayo.

Please see attached, Irish Water's scoping opinion in relation to Water Services. On
receipt of the planning referral, Irish Water will review the finalised Environmental
Impact Assessment Report (EIAR) as part of the planning process.

Cueries relating to the terms and the EIA scoping opinions below should be directed
to planning@water.ie

Yours sincersly,

Signed on behalf of Irish Water:
Pe: Ali Robinson

Yvonne Harris
Connections and Development Services

10
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Irish Water's Response to EIA Scoping Requests

At present, Irsh Water does not have the capacity to advise on the scoping of
individual projects. However, in general the following aspects of Water Services
should be considered in the scope of an EIA where relevant;

a)

b)

c)

d)

e}

g)

h)

)

Where the development proposal has the potential to impact an Irish Water
Drinking Water Source(s), the applicant shall provide details of measures to
be taken to ensure that there will be no negative impact to Irish Waters
Drinking Water Source(s) during the construction and operational phases of
the development. Hydrological / hydrogeological pathways between the
applicant’s site and receiving waters should he identified as part of the report.

Where the development proposes the backfilling of materials, the applicant is
required to include a waste sampling strategy to ensure the material is inert.

Mitigations should be proposed for any potential negative impacts on any
water source(s) which may be in proximity and inciuded in the environmental
management plan and incident response.

Any and all potential impacts on the nearby reserveir as public water supply
water source(s) are assessed, including any impact on hydrogeology and any
groundwater/ surface water interactions.

Impacts of the development on the capacity of water services (e do existing
water senvices have the capacity fo cater for the new development). This is
confirmed by Irish Water in the form of a Confirmation of Feasibility (COF). If
a development requires a connection to either a public water supply or
sewage collection system, the developer is advised to submit a Pre-
Connection Enguiry (PCE) enquiry to Irish Water to determine the feasibility
of connection to the Irish Water network. All pre-connection enguiry forms are

available from nifps/iwww waler ie/conneclionsiconnecijion-stens/.

The applicant shall identify any upgrading of water services infrastructure that
would be required to accommodate the proposed development.

In relation to a development that would discharge trade effluent — any
upstream treatment or attenuation of discharges required prior to discharging
to an Irish Water collection network.

In relation to the management of surface water, the potential impact of
surface water discharges to combined sewer networks and potential
measures to minimise and or / stop surface waters from combined sewers.

Any physical impact on Irish Water assets — reservoir, drinking water source,
treatment works, pipes, pumping stations, discharges outfalls etc. including
any relocation of assets.

When considering a development proposal, the applicant is advised to
determine the location of public water services assets, possible connection
points from the applicant's site / lands to the public network and any drinking

2 Uisce Esreann Irish Water
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K}

N

water abstraction catchments to ensure these are included and fully assessed 6\0

in any pre-planning proposals. Details, where known, can he obtained by
emailing an Ordnance Survey map identifying the proposed location of the
applicant’s intended development to datarequestsi@water.ie.

Other indicators or methodologies for identifying infrastructure located within
the applicant’s lands are the presence of registered wayleave agreements,
visible manholes, vent stacks, valve chambers, marker posts etc. within the
proposed site.

Any potential impacts an the assimilative capacity of receiving waters in
relation to Irish Water discharge outfalls including changes in dispersion [
circulation characterises. Hydrological / hydrogeological pathways between
the applicant’s site and receiving wafers should be identified within the report.

m) Any potenfial impact on the contributing catchment of water sources either in

terms of water abstraction for the development {and resuftant pofential impact
on the capacity of the source) or the potential of the development to influence
I/ present a risk o the quality of the water abstracted by Irnsh Water for public
supply should be identified within the report

n) Where a development proposes to connect to an Irish Water network and that
network either abstracts water from or discharges wasiewater o a
“‘protected”f sensitive area, consideration as to whether the integrity of the
site [ conservation objectives of the site would be compromised should be
identified within the report.

o) Mitigation measures in relation to any of the above ensuring a zero risk to any
Irish Water drinking water sources (Surface and Ground waler).

This is not an exhausiive list.

Please note;

Where conneciion{s) to the public network is required as part of the
development proposal, applicants are advised to complete the Pre-
Connection Enguiry process and have received a Confirmation of Feasibility
letter from Irish Water ahead of any planning application.

Irish Water will not accept new surface water discharges to combined sewer
networks.

3 Uisce Eireann Irish Water
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Geological Survey Ireland

Dear David,

With reference to your email received on the 08 February 2022, concerning the Scoping
Report for Keerglen Wind Farm, Co Mayo, please find attached response and dataset sheet
from Geological Survey Ireland.

If you have any further queries or if we can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to
contact me Trish Smullen, or my colleague Clare Glanville at GSIPlanning@gsi.ie.

Yours sincerely,

Trish Smullen
Geological Survey Ireland

From: GSI Planning

Sent: 08 February 2022 16:58

To: Clare Glanville; Sophie O'Connor; Brian McConnell; Monica Lee; Taly Hunter Williams; Sean Cullen; Charise
McKeon; Jim Hodgson; Eoin McGrath; Trish Smullen

Cc: GSI Planning

Subject: EIS 22/33 - Scoping Report for Keerglen Wind Farm, Co Mayo

EIS 22/33

Scoping Report for Keerglen Wind Farm, Co Mayo. Request for observations by ABO Wind Ireland Ltd.
Documents are enclosed.

Regards,
John
From: David Clarke [mailto:David.Clarke@abo-wind.com]

Sent: 08 February 2022 13:26
Subject: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Consultee,

ABO Wind Ireland Ltd. (ABO Wind) are seeking to develop a Wind Farm within the townlands of
Keerglen, Co. Mayo.

Accordingly, we have commenced the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) process to support a
forthcoming planning application that will be submitted to Mayo County Council. The proposed wind
farm site is located circa 5.5 km to the south of Ballycastle and 15 km north of the village of
Crossmolina, County Mayo.

Further details of the proposed project can be found in the attached Scoping Report. A Site Location
Plan, Site Layout Plan and Grid Connection Route Drawing are also attached for your information.

We are consulting with you on this proposal as it may be of interest to you (or your organisation). While
you will be presented with the opportunity to make a submission on the proposed development as part
of the statutory planning process, we wanted to engage with you early in the process to make you

aware of the emerging proposals and to provide you the opportunity to comment as necessary. If there

13
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are any key issues which you consider should be addressed during the prepaiation of the
Environmental Impact Assessment Report (EIAR) we would welcome your input at this stage.

Should this consultation request be directed to another contact within your organisatign we would be
grateful if you could forward this information on to them, or respond to this email and provide us with
the appropriate contact.

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

The information contained in this message is confidential or protected by law. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and delete this
message. Any unauthorised copying of this message or unauthorised distribution of the information contained herein is prohibited.

oping Report for Keerglen Wind Farm,

Dear David,
With reference to your email received on the 08 February 2022, concerning the Scoping Report far Keerglen Wind Farm, Co Mayo, please find attached response and dataset sheet from Geological Survey Ireland,

If you have any further queries or if we can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me Trish Smullen, or my colleague Clare Glanville at GSIPlanning @gsl.je.

22 16:58
aphie O'Cannor; Brian McConnell; Monica Lee; Taly Hunter Willams; Sean Cullan; Charise McKean; S Hodgaon; Eoin McGrath; Trish Smullen

- Scoping Report for Keerglen Wind Farm, Ca Mayo

From: David Clarke [maiito:David. Clarke@abo-wind com!

Sent: 08 February 2022 13:26
Subject: Consultation - Kesrglen Wind Fam

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation, Do nat click links or open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Consultee,

ABO Wind ireland Ltd. [ABO Wind) are seeking to develop a Wind Farm within the townlands of Keerglen, Co. Mayo.
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An Roinn Comhshaoil, - -
Aerdide agus Cumarsaide GEDIUE]EHI su‘ vey
2 Department of the Environment, Suirbhéireacht Gheolalgchta
Climiate and Communications lraland | Eireann
David Clarke

ABO Wind lreland Ltd.

Unit 3, Aspen Court

Comelscourt

Dublin D18 K400 15 February 2022

Re: Scoping Report for Keerglen Wind Farm, Co Mayo
Your Ref: nfa
Our Ref; 22/34

Drear David,

Geological Survey Ireland is the national earth sdence agency and is a division of the Department of the
Envircnment, Climate and Communications. We provide independent peological information and advice and gather
various data for that purpose. Please see our website for data aveilability. We recommend using these various data
sets, when conducting the EIAR, SEA, planning and scoping processes. Use of our data or maps should be attributed
correctly to ‘Geclogical Survey Ireland”.

With reference to your email received on the 08 February 2022, concerning the Scoping Report for Keerglen Wind
Farm, Co Mayo, Geelogical Survey Ireland would encourage use of and reference to our datasets. Please find
attached a list of our publicly aveilable datasets that may be useful to the emironmental assessment and planning
process. We recommend that you review this list and refer to any datasets you consider relevant to your
assessment. The remainder of this letter and following sections provide more detail on some of these datasets.

Geoheritage

Geological Survey Ireland is in partnership with the National Parks and Wildlife Service (NPWS, Department of
Housing, Local Government and Heritage), to identify and select important geclogical and gecmorphological sites
throughout the country for designation as geological NHAs (Natural Heritage Arezs). This is addressed by the
Geoheritage Programme of Geological Survey Ireland, under 16 different geological themes, in which the minimum
number of scientfically significant sites that best represent the theme are rigorously selected by a panel of theme
experts.

County Geological Sites (CG5s), as adopted under the Mational Heritage Plan, include additional sites that may aiso
be of national importance, but which were not selected as the very best examples for NHA designation. All
geological heritage sites identified by Geological Survey Ireland are categorized as Ci55 pending any further NHA
designation by NPWS5. CG5s are now routinely included in County Development Plans and in the Gi5 of planning
departments, to ensure the recognition and appropriate protection of geological heritage within the pfanning
system. CGE5s can be viewed onfine under the Geological Heritage tab on the online Map Viewer.

The audit of County Geological Sites of County Mayo was completed in 2014, revised in 2019 and published in
Movemnber 2020 The full report details can be found here. Our records show that there is no CG5 in the vicinity of
the Keerglen Landholding Boundary but there is a CG5 in the vicinity of the potential cable route to the
substation at Tawnaghmore, Killala.

Killala Area, Co. Mayo (GR 121833, 327262}, under IGH theme: 1GH 7 Quaternary. This fisld of discrete
glaciotectonic ridges and interspersed glacial features form a body of tectonised proglacal features west of
the Moy Estuary, in @ coastal embayment. The site covers an area ~7km wide {west-sast] at its widest point,
along a coastal strip of almost 5km north-south, on the western side of the estuary, and indudes numerouws
ridge features. Link to Site Report: MOOGE.

With the current plan, there are no envisaged impacts on the integrity of current CG5s by the proposed
development. However, if the proposed development plan is altered, pleasze contact Clare Glanville
[Clare. Glanville@gsi.ie) for further information and possible mitigation measures if applicable.

Geological Surepy raland, Bepzars Bush, Haddingtan Road, Dublin D04 K7X4, Ireland,
Juirbhéireacht Gheolziochta Breann, Tor an Bhacaigh, Bothar Haddingtan, Baile Atha Cla

T 4353 (01 &78 204 Lacall ! LaGH 129044 5500 www g,:i T Febiirirear rairmf comhifir eagrem § e

D0 KT, Eire
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3 An Eoinn Comhshaoil, LY
fi s Aeriide agus Cumarsiide Gﬂﬂ Ill_'.lgll:aa 2 "“_.vey
| I Department of the Environment, Suirbhéireacht Ghebldiochta

Climate and Communications Ireland | Eireann
Groundwater

Geological Survey Ireland’s Groundwater and Geothermal Unit, provides advice, data and maps relating to
groundwater distribution, guality and use, whidh is especially relevant for safe and secure drinking water supplies
and healthy ecosystems.

Proposed developments need to consider any potential impact on specific groundwater abstractions and on
groundwater resources in general. We recommend wsing the groundwater maps on our Map viewer. which should
include: wells; drinking water source protection areas; the national map suite - aquifer, groundwater vulnerability,
groundwater recharge and subsoil permeability maps. For areas underlain by limestone, please refer to the karst
specific data layers [karst features, tracer test database; turlough water levels [gwievelie). Background information
is also provided in the Growndwater Body Descriptions. Please read afl disclaimers carefully when using Geological
Survey Ireland data.

The Groundwater Data Viewer indicates an aquifer classed as a "‘Poor Aguifer - Bedrock which is Generally
Unproductive except for Local Zones' underlies the Keerglen Landholding Boundary. Several aguifers including a
“Poor Agquifer - Bedrock which is Generally Unproductive except for Local Zones’, a ‘Locally Important Aquifer -
Karstified', and a "Locally Important Aguifer - Bedrock which is Mederately Productive only in Local Zones’
underlie the potential cable route to the substation at Tawnaghmore, Killala.

The Groundwater Vulnerability map indicates the range of groundwater vulnerabilities within the area covered is
variable. We would therefore recommend use of the Groundwater Viewer to identify areas of High to Extreme
Vulnerability and ‘Rock at or near surface’ in your assessments, as any groundwater-surface water interactions
that might ocour would be greatest in these areas.

The Groundwater Protection Response overview and fink to the main report is here: https:/ fwawe gsiiefen-
ie/programmes-and-projects,/groundwater-and-geothermal-unit/ projects/protecting-drinking-water/what-is-
drinking-water-protection/county-groundwater-protection-schemes/ Pages/default.aspo.

Geological Mapping
Geological Survey Ireland maintains online datasets of bedrock and subsoils geological mapping that are reliable
and accessible. We would encourage you to use these data which can be found here, in your future assessments.

Geotechnical Database Resources

Geological Survey Ireland continues to populate and develop our national geotechnical database and viewer with
site investigation data submitted voluntarily by industry. The current database holding is over 7500 reports with
134 000 boreheles; 31,000 of which are digitised which can be accessed through downloads from our Geotechnical
Map Viewer. We would encourage the use of this database as part of any baseline geclogical assessment of the
proposed development as it can provide invaluable baseline data for the region or vicinity of proposed
development areas. This information may be beneficial and cost saving for any site-specific investigations that may
be designed as part of the project.

Geohazards

Geohazards can cause widespread damage to landscapes, wildlife, human property and human life. In Irefand,
landslides, flooding and coastal erosion are the most prevalent of these hazards. We recommend that gechazards
be taken into consideration, especially when developing areas where these nsks are prevalent, and we encourage
the use of our data when doing so.

Landslides are common in areas of peat, reck near surface and in fine to coarse range materials [such as glacial
tills); areas which are found within the proposed area of the wind farm development. Our records show there
has been a landslide event occurring in the 1950s within the Keerglen Landholding Boundary. Geological Survey
Ireland has information available on landslides in Irefand via the Mational Landslide Database and Landslide
Susceptibility Map both of which are available for viewing on our dedicated Map Viewer. Associated guidance
documentation relating to the Mational Landsfide Susceptibility Map is also available.

Geological Survey Ireland, Bepgars Bush. Haddington Road, Dublin D04 K7¥A, reland,
ton, Balle Atha Claith O

1890 44 %5 00 wwrw gsi.ie

K%, Eire

Suirbhéireacht Gheolaiochta Bireann

T +353 (0 678 2000 LoCall

or an Bhacaigh, Botnar Hadd!

i comhfireneras | niamwiEe
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An Roinn Comhshaoil, | -
Acsiide agus Cumarndide Geologicai Survey
Department of the Environment, Suirbhéireacht Gheofgiochta
Climate and Communications Ireland | Eirsann

MNatural Resources {Mineral tes

Geological Survey Ireland provides data, maps, interpretations and advice on matters related to minerals, their use
and their development in our Minerals section of the website. The Active Quarries, Mineral Localities and the
Ageregate Potential maps are available on our Map Viewer.

We would recommend use of the Azgregate Potential Mapping viewer to identify areas of High to Very High source
aperegate potential within the area. In keeping with a sustainable approach we would recommend use of our data
and mapping viewers to identify and ensure that natural resources used in the development are sustainably
sourced from properfy recognised and licensed fadlities, and that consideration of future resource sterilization is
considered.

Geochemistry of soils, surface waters and sediments

Geological Survey Ireland provides baseline peochemistry data for Irefand as part of the Tellus programme. Baseline
geochemistry data can be used to assess the chemical status of soil and water at a regional scale and to support the
assessment of existing or potential impacts of human activity on environmental chemical quality. Tellus iz a
national-scale mapping programme which provides mutti-element data for shallow soil, stream sediment and
stream water in Ireland. At present, mapping consists of the border, western and midland regions. Data is available
at hittps:/ fwww.gsi e/ en-ie/data-and-maps/Fages/Geochemisiry.aspx. This page also hosts Geochemical Mapping
of Agricultural and Grazing Land Soif of Europe (GEMAS] and lithogeochemistry [rock gecchemistry] from southeast
Ireland datasets. Geological Survey Ireland and partners are undertaking applied geochemistry projects to provide
data for agriculture {Terra Soil}, waste soil characterisation { Gecchemically Appropriate Levels for Soil Recovery
Facilities) and mineral exploration [Minerzal Prospectivity Mapping).

Geo ical data

Geological Survey Ireland produces high-resolution geophysical data (Magnetic field, electrical conductivity, natural
gamma-ray radiation) of soils & rocks as part of the Tellus programme. These data currently cover approximately
75% of the country and provide supporting geclogical information on a regional scale useful for assessing
environmentzl impact and risk.

Other Comments

Should development go ahead, all other factors considered, Geological Survey Irefand would much appreciate a
copy of reports detailing any site investigations carmied out. Should any significant bedrock cuttings be created, we
would ask that they will be designed to remain visible as rock exposure rather than covered with soil and
wvegetated, in accordance with safety guidelines and engineering constraints. In areas where natural exposures are
few, or deeply weathered, this measure would permit on-going improvement of geological knowledge of the
subsurface and could be included as additional sites of the gecheritage dataset, if appropriate. Alternatively, we ask
that a digital photographic record of significant new excavations could be provided. Potential visits from Geological
Survey Ireland to personally document exposures could also be arranged.

The data would be added to Geclogical Survey Ireland's national database of site imvestigation boreholes,
implemented to provide 3 better s=rvice to the civil engineering sector. Data can be sent to the Geological Mapping
Unit, at mailtto:GeologicalMappinginfo i.ie, 01-678 2795

| hope that these comments are of assistance, and if we can be of any further help, please do not hesitate to
contact me Clare Glanville, or my cofleague Trish Smullen at GSIFlanning@gsi.ie.

Yiours sincerely,

Clare Glanville
Senior Geologist
Geological Survey Ireland

Geological Survey lreland, Bepears Bush, Haddington Read, Dublin D04 K7¥4, Ireland,
Suirbheirescht Gheolslochta Elreann, Tor an Bhacagh, Bothar Haddington, Bslle Atha Clalth D04 K784, Eire

T +353 (0} 678 2000  LoCall / LAdGHan 1890 44 95 00 wwwigsile FRiittear raimb combffireggros ( nizaeiie
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An Roinn Comhshaoil, :
Aerdide agus Cumarsaide GE“I Ugl'&su Wﬂy

Department of the Environment, Suirbhéireacht G Eﬁ:htﬂ
Climate and Communications Ireland | Eireann <(\

Erc: Table - Geological Survey Irefand’s Publicly Available Datasets Relevant to Planning, EIA and SEA processes. ‘_?9/
(@)
S

-~

)
‘37

Geolopgical Survey lreland, Bepgars Bush, Haddington Road, Publin D04 K7¥4, Ireland.
Suirbhéireacht Gheolaiochts Breann, Tor an Bhacaigh, Bomar Haddingron, Balle Atha Clarth D04 K784, Eire
T +353 (00 678 2000 LeCall/ LaGHan 189044 5300 www.gslle Filittear rimiy comhffireagras | piaoeige
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Irish Wildlife Trust

Dear David,
Apologies for the late reply.

Thank you for contacting us. We do not have the staff capacity to respond to this consultation atthe
moment but will keep it on file.

Kind regards,
Fabiola Vieira

On Tue, 8 Feb 2022 at 13:27, David Clarke <David.Clarke@abo-wind.com> wrote:

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
the emerging proposals and to provide you the opportunity to comment as necessary. If there are any
key issues which you consider should be addressed during the preparation of the Environmental Impact
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

The information contained in this message is confidential or protected by law. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and <elefe this
message. Any unauthorised copying of this message or unauthorised distribution of the information contained herein is prohibited.

Dear Gavid,
Apolagies for the late reply.

Thiank you for contacting us. We da not have the staff capacty to respand o this consultation at the mament but will keep 1t on fle

On Tue, & Feb 2022 ¢ 13:27, Devid Clarke <avid Clarks @sbo wind com wrote
Desr Consultee,

ABO Wind ireland Lid, (ABO Wind] are seeking to develop a Wind Farm within the townlands of Keerglen, Co. Mayo.

¢ Council. The propated wind farm site i Jacated circa 5.5 kim o the south of Ballycastic nd 15 ki north of the vilage of Crossmolins, Courty Mayo.

253, we wanted to engage with you early in the prosess to make you sware of the emerging propasals end to
sstage

wld be grateful i you could forward this

tin touch

25 years WIND

Office of Public Works

Dear Mr Clarke,
Please find attached OPW response to email below.
Kind regards

Karen

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
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Site Layout Plan and Grid Connection Route Drawing are also attached for ygur information.

We are consulting with you on this proposal as it may be of interest to you (or youf/crganisation). While
you will be presented with the opportunity to make a submission on the proposed development as part of
the statutory planning process, we wanted to engage with you early in the process to maie you aware of
the emerging proposals and to provide you the opportunity to comment as necessary. If tfigre are any key
issues which you consider should be addressed during the preparation of the Environmentatimpact
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

The information contained in this message is confidential or protected by law. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and delete this message.
Any unauthorised copying of this message or unauthorised distribution of the information contained herein is prohibited.

Message (HTML)

Archive | Reply Rej
Al

Delete

<) Reply 9 Reply Al

e 1 - Site Lacation Map.pelf

Dear Mr Clarke,
Please find attached OPW response to email below.
Kind regards

Karen

From: David Clarke <David.Clarke
Sent: Tuesday & February 2022 13:26
Subject: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

Dear Consultee,
ABO Wind Ireland Ltd. {ABO Wind) are seeking to develop a Wind Farm within the townlands of Keerglen, Co. Mayo.

Accordingly, we have commencad the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) process to support a forthcoming planning application that will be submitted to Mayo County Council. The proposed wind farm site is located circa 5.5 km to the south of Ballycastle and 15 km north of the village of Crossmolina, County
Mayo.

Further detalls of the proposed projact can be found In the attached Scoping Report. A Site Locatlon Plan, Site Layout Plan and Grid Connection Route Drawing are also attached for your information.

We are consulting with you on this proposal as it may be of interest to you (or your organisation). While you will be presented with the opportunity to make a submission on the proposed development as part of the statutory planning process, we wanted to engage with you early in the process to make you aware
of the emerging proposals and to provide you the opportunity to comment as necessary. If there are any key issues which you consider should be addressed during the preparation of the Environmental Impact Assessment Report (EIAR) we would welcome your input at this stage.

Should this consultation request be directed to another contact within your organisation we would be grateful if you could forward this information on to them, or respond to this email and provide us with the appropriate contact.
If you have any queries, or require any additional information, please do not hesitate to get in touch.

Kind regards,
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Oifig na
0 Pw nDibreacha Poibli
Office of Public Works

Mr. David Clarke
ABO Wind Ireland Lid
Dsvicd. Clarke @ abo-wind. com

Our Ref: 74 -2022

Re: Keerglen Wind Farm
Drwear Mr Clarke,
1 refer to the above and your cormrespondence dated 8 February 2022,

The following are the Office of Public Works (OPW) commenis:

There are no Arerial Catchment Drainage Schemes under the responsibility of OPW located
within the amea of the works proposed.

The podential cable route of the ESB transmission line is located north of the OPW Moy Arterial
Drainage Scheme channels. If the potential route significantly changes and interferes with OPW
drainage channels in this area this office would request to be consulted on location and measun:
to protect ESB transmussion line.

This office has no records of flooding or past flood events within the above townland as identified
on https:fwww floodinfo.iemapfloodmaps

Please note that under 5.1 No. 122/2010 - Buropean Commyumnities { Assessmenlt and Management
of Flood Risks) Regulations 2010 no person, including a body corporate, shall construct any new
bridpe or alter, reconstruct, or restore any existing bridge over any watercourse without the
consent of the Commissioners or otherwise than in accordance with plans previously approved
by the Commissioners. Where the development inlends to install a culveri or bridge over a
walercourse as part of the development Section 50 approval will be required in advance from the
Commissioners of Public Works,

This office would recommend that no flooding should oecur during or afier construction of the
proposed wind farm.

Yours sincerely.

Karen Donovan
Engineering Services Administration Unit
24" March 2022

Ceann Difig, Sréid Jonathan Swift, Baile Atha Troim, Ca na Mi, C15 NX38
Head Office, Jonathan Switt Strest, Trim, Co. Maath, G15 NX36
T+353 46 242 5000 | infoi@ope e

WA DD 18
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Irish Peatland Conservation Council

Hi David,

Please see attached letter from Irish Peatland Conservation Council regarding the propscsed Keerglen
Windarm.

Please confirm receipt and thank you for allowing us to make comments on this project.

Tristram Whyte BSc (Hons) Applied Freshwater & Marine Biology
Conservation, Policy & Fundraising Officer

Irish Peatland Conservation Council

Lullymore

Rathangan

Co. Kildare

R51 V293

045 860133

bogs@ipcc.ie

CHY6829

Registered Charity Number 20013547

Visit http://www.ipcc.ie to learn all about the Save the Bogs Campaign or to arrange your visit to the Bog
of Allen Nature Centre

On 8 Feb 2022, at 13:25, David Clarke wrote:

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

=] = Re: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm - Message (HTML)
File Message  Help  Attachments Q  Tell me what you want to do

7 S @ Bk|a

Open Quick Remove Save pload Select Copy | Show
Prnt Attachment | As Attachments |~ Al Message

Adtions Save to Computer Save to Cloud Selection Message

Re: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

)| | © Reply Al Forward
Tristram Whyte <bogs@ e> = ply nwar

™

Kees
pdf File

HiDaid

rish Peatiand

ing on s project

Fresnwater
o

rish past
wiymore
Rathangen
o sildare
RSt vass

a5 350133

Registared charity Number 20015547

o ¥ B0g of llen Nature cantre

OnFab 2022, 5113:25, David Clarke wrote:

Dear consultss,

1 1 Flen, o wizye.

Accordingly, Environmental e

that il be submitied to Mayo County Council. The proposed wind farm sce i lacated Crca 5.5 km 10 the south of Balycasts and 15 k north of the vilage of Crossmalina, CouRty M3y,

Furthr decal of the Broposed project can be found i the sttached Scoping Repart, A ke Location Plan, Site Layaut Plan orawing =

onehis 12t may beof your orgarisation). whil the opportuniy 5 we cary the emrging
= oo I ssnecessary. v n uld be environmental mpa jour input at this

pros m

nwe i %o them, or respe
11 you e any Susres, G require any zddtiansl nformatian, plesse 29 nas esitase o gexin taush,

ind regards,

oavid
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72

L
IRISH PEATLAND

COMIERVATION COAMOIL

IrisH PeaTLAND CONSERVATION COUNCIL Qb,\

CoMHAIRLE CHAOMHMAITHE PHORTAIGH NA HEREANN \O

Lullymors, Rathangan, Co. Kildars, lieland R51 V203 TelTait %[ﬂ]d&@llm
Liodach Mo, Rath lompgain, Go. Ghil Dara, Ere, A1 V203 e-mailnomhphost boge@ipceia  weblidinfor waw. i

>
David Clarke 17th February 2022

Junior Project Manager
ABO Wind Ireland Ltd.
Unit 3 Aspen Court
Cornelscourt
Dublin
D8 K400
David.Clarke@abo-wind.com
Re: Proposed Keerglen Wind Farm, Co. Mayo - Scoping Report
Diear Mr Clarke,

Thank you for consultms the Insh Peatland Conservation Council regarding the proposed
windfarm The Insh Peatland Conservation Coumetl (TPCC) was establizhed in 1982 and has 40 yvears of expen-
ence m peatland conservation Ohar aim is to conserve a representative sample of mtact peatland=. Onby 18% of
Ireland’s cripmal range of peatland hakatats are deemed wrorthy of conservation. 82% have become depraded
from multiple pressures such as peat extraction. agnculture, forestry, habatar fragmentanon and developments
{TIreland’s Peatland Conservation Action Plan 2020, Malone & O'Connell 2009}, Specafically, County Mayo
has only 33% of the onginal peatland kabstat in 3 conservation worthy state (Peatlands & Climate Change
Action Plan 2030, O'Connell, 2021}, This has had a2 mapor effect on iodmversity and the ecolopical fimchionmgz
of the County’s mdigenous habitats and species. This makes 1f imperatrve that all st be deone to halt the loss
of any more wildlife dunng the climate and biodmrersity emergency which was declared by Government m
2019,

Chr work 15 gmded by our 6th Action Plan “Treland’s Peztland Conservaton Acton Plan 20207 and a recent
amendment “Peatlands & Chmate Change Action Flan 20307, which focuses on the role of peatlands in tackimg
predicted climate change. Thess documents are available for download on cur website at www ipecie. Many of
the actions m our plan have been mcluded withim the Matonal Peatlands Strategy which has bean zdopted by
every Government Department and Local Authority. The “Mational Peatlands Strategy”™ can be downloaded

from www npws e,

While we are not mherently opposed fo the constuchon of wand farms as we understand that Ireland has legal
obligations to provide 80%c (Climate Action Plan 2021) of 1ts energy production from renewable sources by
2030, there 15 bowever a responsibility on wind farm developers to enswre that there 15 no loss of mportant
peatland habitat and the species that uihse 1t through the development of wind farms Also. bad consbruchon
practices can result In an actrve carbon smk bemg converted to a carbon source which s detrimental to any
effort in combating anthropogenically caused global climate change.

We have a pumber of concems pertaiming to the proposed development which need to be given due considera-
fron within the pre-plarming staze beors IPCC counld suppert the project.

Legal Obligations to Protect Peatlands

Wea are legally bound by Mational and Ewropesn lemslation (The Wildlife Acts, EU Habutats and Bud's
Directrves) and mternanonal conventions (Ramsar, Bem Convention, Convention on Biolomical Divernity) to do
our utmost te protect peatlands now and for faotme generafions. Peatland habitats have besn severely dimnn-
isked m the country and this destruction 15 an 155ue m other lepislation and conventions such as the UN
Comention on Chmate Change, Boon Comvention, World Hentage Convention, Water Framework Directive,
Emvomnment Liabibity Directve, Planmng and Development Acts Mzhonal Momments Acts, Environmental
Drectrve, EIA and SEA All of these lemslative instruments have been adopted by Ireland and the IPCC ask
that you assess your development with regard to these legal oblizatons.

40 Yeans TaKkiNG AcTioN FOrR Bogs ano WILDLIFE

Charlly NolLimhir Corfarna’y CHYSES Pogitensd in insan MofUmbsr Cldmithe i S 116158 Fesgéiioms OfoniOifi Clamthe: Lulyrnom, Faltmngeen, Co. Kiinm, FES1 W2, sk
Govmanon Code Shleren of Complinnoes (PCC oonfim (el our ovganksrion aomples wit Ths Govemanos Codes o B Commonly, Vislontory s Charkabie Sedor e inskend
Company Seoreéary Aimal Comfincht Aochel Kevanngh

Direciors: Slidrtviin. Merlin Kaby, Calherine OConnell, Rachel Kirasnagh, Jeanniie Aoche, Setn O Faanghal

Patrons/Pétnisnni. Pouine Bawick, Don Caneny, HAH Princess ineha of the Nethadonds,
Eanna Wi Lomitnn, Mabfis Schoulen, His Exoslency Mr Peler Kok Nettadnnds Ambssssdor o imland
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Bagland 4)6\
The IPCC would advise amy developer planming construction m, or within close proxmaty to peatland habatat to O
be fammliar wath the Emvrenmental Protection Agency fundad project BOGLAND (www.ued 1e/bogland). ®
Thi= propect recommends the best practice pmdelimes to ensure no damapmng development occurs on, or affects peat m;fgi at-
lands of conservation value. Itz overall objectrve was to develop zndance mn the development of strategies for the sus &Tﬂn
manzgement of peatlands m Ireland To thes effect, the report aimed to provide a synthesis of knowledge on this key naturzl
rescance, the mportant funchons and roles that peatland ecosystems perform, their vanous unhsatons and how athindes andpc‘hig/
ctes affect them 0(53/

<3
We wmge developers to properly assess and screen for any adverse umpacts on the habitat or species uhihsmg them that may ocour QD
diming the constucton of anyv mfrastechiral development such as wind fams. We would also mmplore developers to have proper 4
plans m place for the habitat regardmg after-use rehabilitation/restoratton. The IPOC could not support a developrment that does not

practice conservaiion responsibly.

Designated Sites (Sec Map 1)

The Insh Peatland Conservation Couneil have identified 3 mumber of designated zrtes wathin the prosomuty of the proposed wind-
farm which need to be given due atterbion m ascertaimimg the pnpacts to biodiversty from the proposed project. In particular, deval-
opments have the potential to distupt the bvdrology of peatiand and even small impacts to the water table may have disastrous con-
sequences for specialised peatland species that live withm memimal ranges of chemical and hydrological homts, such as the Partizo
whotl snauls. Developers need to ensure that thewr project In no way affects the mtegity of the habitats and quabifying mierests
izcluding species of the designated sites. The cummlative affect of all developments. proposed and granted, within a suitable dis-
tance, must also be assessed for thew mmpacts on desipnated sies.

Glemamoy Bog SAC (Sitecode D050

The MNathonal Parks and Wildhife Service Site Svonopsis (SACENHA) desenbes Glenamoy Bog Complex SAC as being dommnated
by blanket bog, and 15 2 prime example of extreme ocsanic lowland-atlantic blanket bog, 2 priowity ANMNE T habitat under the ELT
Hzbiatats Directive. Dhestrophic lakes wat heath juniper heath and fransifion mure have been idenbified at Glenamov Bog Complex
and are qualifying imterests as they are also ANNEX I Habotatz. There 15 a large flush at Rathavistesn whech 12 desenibed as being
one of the largest and best examples within Worth Mayo. Poor fen has also been identified and while it 15 not histed as an ANNEX
Habitat it 15 recommended withim A Guide to Habitats in Ireland (Fuhe & Fossit, 2000, The Hentape Council) that it should be
regarded as being of Special Conservation Importance.

There 1= also a nomber of species that require inveshzation to ensure that the propesed development does not mterfere or destroy
unportant refugia or displace mmportant spectes hindenng Ireland’s recovery from the Climate Change and Biodiversity Emerzency
declared by Government m 2019, Crter (ANNEY &IV, Insh Wildlife Acts), Red Grouse (Red Listed. BOCCT) | Merlin (ANNEX
I Amber Listed BOCCT), Peregnine Faleon (ANNEX T), Golden Plover (ANNEX L Red Listed BOCCT), Bamacle Geese (ANNEX
I, Armober Listed, BOCCT), Atlantie Salmen (ANNEX T1&TV, Vulnerabls Listed Treland Fed List Mo 3), Badger (Insh Wildhfe
Acts), and Irish Hare (ANNEX IV, Insh Wildlife Acts) have all been identified on site and cwrrent populations need to be described
and posmble pathways to disnuption of these species needs to be umreshgated before any project gets penmission.

The Sate Synopsis also states that over-grazing bas cansed evosion to the blanket bog, machar and heath habitats while peat extrac-
tion for hwbuary, hand-cut and mechanical 15 also widespread within the desiznated site. Afforestation has swrounded the site with
comfer plantahons and 15 also hsted a5 a threat.

The IPCC Sites Datzbase hsts Glenamoy SAC as bemng under threat from recreation, erosion, mfiastructural developroents, burnimz
and drainage. The constuchon of the Comib Gas Pipeline has also affected the integrity of the site.

Some restoration works have been imdertaken by Coillte as part of the Coullte Blanket Bog Bestoration Project 2002 - 2006 where
windrowing, foresity removal and dram-blocking was camed out. If 15 important that thes area 13 not affected by any proposed
development

Fhododendron has been recorded at Glenamoy SAC and this needs to be myvestizated as mwvasive species are detmmental to the con-
sarvation objectives of Glenamey SAC.

An area within the Glenamery SAC was alzo featred wnthin 2 study i the 1970s 2= part of the Infernzhional Biologieal Propramme
further lughlighting that the habrtats contained are of international mporiznce and should be protected from any developments.
Glenamov Bog Complex kas a vast amay of wetland babitats and any proposed development needs to ensure using best pracioce that
o detmmmental affects will oconr to the hydrology of the designated conservation area or the species ufih=zing the site.

The Irich Peatland Conservation Council are aware of a rational walking route “Benwee Head Loop”. Any development needs to
ensure that it does not mterfere with the views and tone of the frazls which are amenity and towrst attractions.

Bellacorrick Bog Complex (Sitecode 800192)

Thi= site, as descnibed by the Mational Parks & Wildlife Semvace as being predommnantly lowland blanket bog (with outstanding pool
development) but also contaiming mtermediate and raised bogs of varving quality. Flushes, which are spnng-fed and species nch
feature throughout the site which has 2 well-developed pool system and 15 also home to the largest assemblage of fen vegeizhon m
Ireland. “It 15 conmdered fo be of mternzational moportance due to the extent of the individual areas of bog and the wide vanety of
habatats present and because of the presence of a number of rare and threatened plant and amimal species™ (MPWS Site Synopsis).

A pumber of rare and threatened spectes have been recorded on site and listed wathm the Site Synopsis and these need to nmvestigat-
ed to ascertam thewr suscepubibity to dizruption from the proposed developrment before any project 15 given approval

Vertigo gaveri (AMNNEX IT, Vulnerable. Read List Mo 1) and Greenland White-Fronted Goose (ANNEX I Amber Listed, BOCCT)
have been rdentfied within the Site Synopses and need to be given the due regard to ensure no detmmentz] affect ocowrs on thoze
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spectes as a result of poor planming. ’9
The IPCC Sites Database also holds records of Fartigo subsriara (Mear Threatened Fed List No 2} and lel‘lt?nt§ tfana (Tare
moss) which also needs to be piven doe regard as a small change m the hvdrology of the site could 1mpact drastie the=a

species.
The wvasive species Sarracenia purpea 15 present in Bellacomck Bog East (G010 170} and Bellaconack Bog South (F %3{]} Ik

was also miroduced 1o 1963 to Monevieran Bog (F 990 1%0). The National Parks and Wildlife Service have an ongoing project

remove myaskve species from Special Areas of Conservation as they are affecting the intesnity of the site. Please hase MN%/

i thit e 0(9

There has been some restoration work i Eskeragh (G 030 1800, Eskeragh MNorth (& 055 190), Shanvolahan, Camavokeen and Derry <3

as Part of the Coullte Blanket Bog Bastoration Project 2002- 2006 where drains on the bog were filled and forestry was removed. Q:)
These areas need to be protected from the proposed development so as to not undo the progress in conservation made. 4
Thke Insh Peatland Conservatton Councl are aware of a nattonal wallang route “The Western Way™ whese the views and wald

nzture of the desiznated trals gve recreational value to the zrez encompaszing the designated nites. Any development needs to

encure that 1t does not mterfere with the views and tone of the trails which are amenity and tourist attrachions.

Inagh Bog NHA (Sitecode (M2391)

Inagh Bog NHA 15 of conservation importance a3 1t contams lowland . mountain and transitional blanket bog.

Choergrazing, buming and drainage have been identified by the Mational Parks and Wildlife Serace as cansing eromen which 1=
regenarating back as wet and dry heath High quality upland habrtat 15 present a= fuzhes and regenerating cutover boz. Commereral
forestry has mmpacted adjacent lands and renewable enersy projects with thew associated mfrastructure are potential threats to the
site. There are 3 mumber of protected and Bed Listed speries present such as Golden Plover (ANNEX I, Red Listed BOCCL, con-
firmed breeding on =ite), Fed Grouse (Red Listed, BOCCT), Insh Hare (ANNEX V, Insh Wildiife Acts), Commeon Frog (ANNEX
W, Insh Wildhife Acts) and Common Lizard (Insh Wildhfe Acts). These species need to be protected from developments that have
the potential to disturb behaviowr and habriat. The plants listed m the NFWS Site Synopsis also need due regard as hyvdrologieal
changes to the habitats may affect their diztibunion. Any development needs to ensire that peatland habitats are not lost through
poor hydrological planning and management.

Ummerantarry Bog MNHA

The =ite synopsis points out that ths site 15 one of only 2 few left from the area that has not bean lost to oversrazme, burming,
afforestation. drainage and turbuary. This lighlights the need to protect these upland peatland habitat=, especially as active peat-cut-
ting 1= taking place. The development of 2 windfarm will also increase the preszures faced by these habitats and could reduce the
conservahon potential, as descnibed within the site synopsis. Golden Plover have been recorded breeding on site (ANNEX I Bed
Listed, BOCCT) and best practice in surveying needs to be adbered to along with ascertaming potential threats from the proposed
development. Any loss of this species 15 not acceptable and the IPCC could not suppoert 2 project whech does not suppert the conser-
wvaton ohjectrves of desipnated sites.

Forrew Bog NHA

Forrew Bog contains mtact lowland blanket bop makmg the site important for conservation with good examples of mierconnecting
pool complexes, wet lawns with bummocks and bollows. Species recorded as present wathin the Site Synopzis mehade Insh Hare
{ANNEX V, Insh Whildhfe Acts) Snipe {Amber Listed BOCCT) and Meadow Pipt (Red Listed BOCCT). Damage has ocownred
throush dumping and peat extraction (some with the sausage machme which 1f zeen needs to be reported to the Epvironmental
Protection Agency, the Mational Parks and Wildhife Senace and the Local Authonity). Commercial forestry, as with the other dazig-
nated sites in thes area has damaged the =ite and 15 2iso an onpoing threat TPCC could not support any proposed development which
does not take these concerns on board and ensure that ether thewr project can alleviate or 2t least not add to the onpoing conserva-

ton 1=smes.

Nitrogen Deposition

In 2018 in the UK 39 of 57 Special Areas of Conservation listed on the APIS website (hitp: /fwarwapis.ac uk) exceeded the Critical
Load Threshold for mtrogen. Thiz 15 having nerative mipacts on the vegetation of the designated habitats. There are various sources
of excess nifrogen such as constuction (e g roads, developments), urban waste water (pollution) and agneulbure (e g fertilizer/pig-
gerys) and can enter 3 habitat via wet or dry deposibion. The proposed development needs to zccount for nitrogen withn pre-plan-
mng coupled with 3 mbrogen monitoring agenda wihneh could lnshbizht possible pathways of ouiment ennchment. Ths also has to be
assessed cummlafively faking mto account neighbownng propesed and granted developments which may be connected wath thi= pro-
ject Peatlands are naturally nufrient poor and the excessmre loads can decimate botamical species.

Binsecurity

Peatlands are suscephible to mvasve species when they are drammed and/or degraded as when the peat dnes out 1t allows species
which would not normally surave m the wet acidic conditions fo take hold The mmtroduction of mvasive species can exacerbate em-
ziom and franspiration mereasing degradation of the peatiand. They can be mivoduced by many vectors such as traffic, which 15
mereased through developments and fragmentation of the peatland habitat as access roads and constructhion lomes taverse and fraz-
ment the landscape. The meovement of soils and machinery has to be meonitored v and out of construchon sites to ensure that best
praciice m relation fo biosecurity 15 adbared to. The affects of fragmentation and mereasing traffic and bow they meovease the =k of
wvasives needs to be accounted for m the pre-planmmng stage. The IPCC could not suppoit & project that does not assess the nsks
relzhon to the spread of mmrasive species. Pleaze refer to www.opws e, Natonal Biodmersity Action Plan 2017-2021 and Ireland’s
Peatland Conservation Action Plan 2020 for information regarding the need to control imvastves.

27



Appendix 2.2
Keerglen Wind Farm Environmental Impact Assessment Report

e

National Monumenis

Pegatlands m Ireland hold a zreat deal of cultwal and ancestal listory, preserved m the anzerobec condrtrons. mitemation-
al oblhizations under the Furopean Comvention on the Protection of the Archaeological Hentage. ratified by Ireland 7. Article 1
of this convention states that Ireland mmst “protect the archaeological haritage as a source of the European collective ;and as

an instrument for estonieal and sciemtific study™. The IPCC need to e that there will be scentific supervision from an md:
body that will evaluate the proposed windfarm area for 1ts archaeological importance. The [PCC could not support the devel t
before a full archasclogical survey s imdertaken and the necessary precautions and mitigstions are m place to enswme that o inzs/g

archzeological mformation and multural story oceurs. <3
(o
Water Framework Directive (See Map 2) 97

Ireland ha= lezal obhgahons under the WED to ensure that all mvers and 1zkes are of “Good Ecological Status™ by 2027. Please
ensure that the proposed development will not adversely impact on the water quality and lower Ireland’s standing wath our lagal
oblizations 1n protecting our waterways. Silt ronoff and chemieal‘construchon pollotion can be disastrows for aguabe wildhfe and
thus should also be factored into the manapement and construction plans of the proposed development. IE WE_33E010200 15 of
good quality and its states needs to be protected from the development. IE WE_33BO01010 has been assessed as “Poor” by the
EPA 5o 1t neads to be ascertzmed as to what has caused the depradation of ecologeal quality and what effect the proposed develop-
ment would bave on this ecological status. Some nvers which have not been assessed by the EPA under the Water Framework
Dharective should be surveyed for baseline data and menitered throughout construchon/dunng the operabion of the propesed wind
farm and plans need to be in place should amy change of the ecolopical status ocewr.

Curlew

The Curlew 13 one of the most endangered species m Ireland and the treeding population has declined by 78% over the past 40
years with less than 130 breedmz pans left (Burdwatch Ireland I-WeB5S MNewsletter Angust 2017). The IPCC would like to rermnd
vou that thi= bird 15 hsted as an ANNEX 1T section IT bird species within the E 1 Birds Dusctive [Couneal Dhrective 79409 EEC]
and also has a national status of Fed on the Birds of Conservation Concern m Ireland kst The Curew Censervation Programmes
(MPWSE) 15 working fo bring this species back from nesr extineton m Ireland and we would wee developers to lizise with them and
BudWatch Ireland mn relation to any development. Bresding Curlew are site specific and will possibly not return if there are con-
struction and operational disturbances from the prepesed development. This needs to be scrutinized with ormthelogical smveys
within the recommendad survey tmes for breading Curlew to ascertaim as to whether they are present and 1f thew utlizs the sife for
any other purposes mch as forazimg. The operationzl mrbines may also affect the Curlew’s local mugration routes. It would be dizas-
trous if this project was to conmbute to the firther dechne of this nearly extinet species. This also has to be assessed cumulatrely
with neighboring proposed and granted developments.

Wetland Surveys Ireland

Wetland Smvevs Ireland (www: wetdandsurvevsireland com) have identified a mumber of wetlands which have had or need to have
an ecolomical survey to ascertan the huodiversity and ecologzical value withn them

Owena Pollaphusea Fen WMI_MASS (internatorally mportant), Glenora Gleneullin Ballvkmletimgh WL MAT120 (urvey
requred), Chydagh Cutover Complex WHT MAILLE (survey requred), Altderg Towghs East Wil MALLLT (survey required) are
all within proccmuty to the proposed development Please laise wath W] to gather 2s much mformation about these sites a5 possible
and ensure that the proposed development will not kave an adverse effect on the habitats or species that are utthsmg them or mov-
ing/mgratng betwreen them and other siznificant sites. North-Western Europe bas lost ~50% of s wetlands (BOGLAND,

EPA 2011) and it 15 imperatrve that all 15 done to halt the loss of this mmportant clmate regulabng, carbon sequestening and biodi-
verse landscape.

Dark Sky Reserves

County Mavo 15 home to 3 Dark Sky Reserve wathin the Ballyerov area and the proposed development has the potennal to affect the
nzhural mght-hme llimnatron levels. The proposed project needs to ensure that it does not tmpact on the datk sky objectives of the
reserve which encourages astrononty toursm of clear skies away from hght polluted populated areas. Dark ckies are also beneficial
for the conservation of spectes as hght pollution has been identified as a threat to many insect and bird species whose natwal behav-
1our has been dizrupted by mereasing hight levels. Anvy proposed development needs o have 3 hghtme plan that 15 senmitive to the
ST mg emviTonment 1n regards to biodversity, natural nizht skv illmminaton and cummiative mmpacts fom neighbounng devel-
opmuents.

Landslide Events (See Map 3}

Lookmg at the Geological Surveys of Ireland s Landslide Event: Map it 15 poszible to see that there 3 number of histonic peat shde
events recorded close to the proposed area. It has come to IPCC s attenfion that cwrent best-practice methods for assessing the prob-
abality and/or risk assesment for peat slippage and beg burst='flows may not be fit for purpose. There has been 2 mumber of peat
events in recent times, such as the Meenbog boz fow, Bolevbrack Mountain peat slhide and the Enockanefime Mountaim bog slide
and there 15 uncertamty over what caused them as there are confoundmg vanables such a5 afforestation. developments (such as
access roads), overgrazmg, draimage, turbuary and rammfall The proposed location for the Eeerglen Windfarm mmst al=o tzke mio
accomnt the cummlative tmpacts from perghbowring developments such as the Glenora Windfarm which 1= proposed just north off
thes project.

Peat has an exceptonally laph water content, 15 3 low density material with low compre=sive strength Thetwrbed peat also has a low
sheer strenzth These parameters allow long mumouts to develop when there 15 3 peat fathwre with the potenfial to destroy aquatic
wildhfs dwectly and down stream. The possibility and extent of nmeouts could be examimed finther to ascertain where these naght
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M._whaipaﬂ:lsdh!y“wldﬁkeanﬂwhatwmldbeatﬁskeuumnnmﬁ]l}'.Thﬁnfcmhasmbedm'&m%ytﬂnpmpﬁmn-
tingency and management plans o the event of an actual peat-shide. There 15 a high possihility that if there 15 3 pestEhds event &

would affect peizhbouning desipnated sites which would be unacceptable and disastrous. If there 15 a possibility of and damage
gocwming to the demgnated sites and ANMNEX habatats as a result of thes developosent then the project should not go al 13 stat-

ed within the Scoping Repart that hof cuthng 15 ocouming on ste. Thes neaeds to be assessed within the peat stabality tests es all
perghbounng proposed and granted developments, such as the Glencra Windfarm proposed just north of this project. . e@
BirdWatch Ireland Specics Sensitivity to Windfarms (See Map 4 & Map 5) /Od)

A =study conducted by BirdWatch Ireland on the senwitivity of certam biwrd species to windfam developmsents shows that Golden <3
Plover and Rad Grouse nead to have a focused swvey mitiated as they have showm sensihvity m this propesed location and need Q:)
due aftention znd assessment to determmne 1f they will be affected by thus development 4
Conclasion

The proposed windfamm 1z situated within an area of igh odreerate, ANNEX I habitat and sumounded by designated mites. The

nzk to these from constmuction coupled with the alrezdy degraded patwe of some of the areas would put them at increased sham
with disasivous consequences to the aquatic and terrestnal emaronment if there 15 a peat shide. The developers also need to assess the
cummlatrve effects of windfarms, afforestation. peat extrachon, dramage, overgraming on the environment - specifically including the
designated mtes. carbon sequestration and also azsess the mplicanens of mpacts on annexed species and hodiversity. It 15 TPCC s
understandmg that the peat souls wall shll be drained while the turbine (hardstands) are being constructed and operational What wall
be the mmpact of this on the Water Framework Durective and carbon storage compared to stranght restoration of the habatat, such as
forestry removal and dram blocking? Taking mto account that the peatland. once restored. would last for 1000s of years (sequester-
ing carbon and providing refugia for odiversity) and that off-shore windfarms are being planned. 1= 1f approprate to frapment and
destrov one of the rarest habitats m Eorope even more than 1t 15 at present”

There are concerns, especiaiby with species such zs Curlew. where dishubancs from torbimes dizplaces and dissuades them from
retrming as they are site specific (Higmins et al. 2009). This would negzte the point of providing areas of conservation m the first
place As the amount of blanket bog m County Mayo has been reduced to 33% of the onzimal resource of blanket bog, 2 globally
umique habitat, and as the amount of wetlands m Exrope have been lost to less than 10%% (BOGLAND, EPA. 2011}, 1t 15 mperative
that they are protected from development or Ireland wall not recover fom the Climate and Biodiversity Emergency. The carbon cost
of thes project needs to also be accounted for, and this has to also inchide the other habitat degrading achvities such as foresty, peat
extraction and fragmentation (roads/cabling etc, already present and proposed as part of this project) over the hifespan of the project.
Any futore plans to upgrade the turbines also needs to be a feature of this proposal. along with the propesed mipacts.

Thank you for readmg through our concerns.

Tnstram Whyte B.5¢ (hons) Freshwater Biology
Conservation Peliey & Fundrarsing Officer - IPCC

The distnbution of breeding burds around wplend windfames, James W. Pearce-Hizpins, Leigh Stephen Rowena H W. Langston,
Izn P. Bambndge and Rhys Bullman 3009, Jownal of Apphed Ecology.

Peatlands and Clmate Change Acton Plan 2030, O'Comnell, C. A Madigan 24, Winte, T. & Famell P, 2021, Insh Peatland
Conzervation Counel.

Ireland’s Peatland Conservation Achon Plan 2020, Sarah Malone B A Hentage Smadies, Dr Cathenme 0 Connell, The Insh Peatland
Conservaton Comneal, 2000,

EPA STRIVE Programme 2007-2013 - BOGLAND: Sustamable Management of Peatlands m Ireland Florence Benou-Wilson,

Tom Bolger, Craig Bullock . Frank Convery, hm Cunry, Shane Ward, Diavid Wilson and Chnistoph Muller, 2011, Fraronmental
Protection Agency & University College Dublin
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Map 1 A

Proposed Keerglen Windfarm
Designated Sites
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Map 2

Proposed Keerglen Windfarm
Water Framework Directive
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Proposed Keerglen Windfarm
Geological Survey of Ireland
Landslide Events
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Proposed Keerglen Windfarm
BirdWatch Ireland
pecies Sensitivity - Golden Plover
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Health Service Executive

Good afternoon,

Please find attached Environmental Health Service (Mayo) submission in relation to the-above proposed
development.
| would appreciate acknowledgement of your receipt of same.

Kind regards,

Evelyn Keane

EHO
Evelyn.keane@hse.ie
Mobile:0862490144

Need information and advice on COVID-19? Go to www.hse.ie/coronavirus

~Consultation - Keerg

Good aftemaon,

piease find attached Haaith service (May; the above proposed ¢
| would appreciate acknowledgement of your receipt of same

MNeed information and advice on COVID-137 Go to ww.hse.is/coronavirus
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R

p— An tSeirbhis Slain omhshaoil
Feidhmeannacht na Seirbhise S| (larthar)
S Ceanncheathra Muire
Caislean an B igh
— Contae ml’glgg
7
Feidhmeannacht na Seirbhise Skfinte Environmental Health a«vlopcp/
Health Service Executive HSE West \_30
St Mary's Headquarters T-)
Castlebar "4
Co. Mayo
T (094) 90 42260 / 90 42105
B (094)90 27312
Date: 4 April 2022
Name: Mr David Clarke, ABO Wind, Unit 3, Aspen Court, Cornelscourt,

Dublin D18 TD56

Construction of a wind farm development at Keerglen, Co. Mayo

and connection to existing electricity grid at Tawnaghmore

Re: Scoping Report
Proposed development:

substation
Applicant: ABO Wind Ireland Ltd
EHIS Reference: EHIS 2250
Dear Mr Clarke,

Please find enclosed HSE Consultation Report in relation to the above proposal.

The following HSE departments were made aware of the consultation request for the proposed

development on 2 March 2022

Emergency Planning - Kay Kennington
Estates — Helen Maher

CHO — Breda Crehan Roche

Assistant National Director for Health Protection — Kevin Kelleher/ Helen Mulcahy

If you have any queries regarding this report the initial point of contact is Ms Maria Horkan, Principal
Environmental Health Officer (marla.horkan@hse.ie) who will refer your query to the appropriate

person.

Yours sincerely

ﬁ‘w—' “ftortca=>

Maria Horkan
Principal Environmental Health Officer
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HSE EIA Scoping

Environmental Health Service Submission Report

Date: 4 April 2022
Our reference: EHIS 2250
Report to: Wir David Clarke, Junior Project Manager ABOD Wind, Unit 3, Aspen Court,

Cornelscourt, Dublin D18 K400
Consultant’s Reference:  Keerglen Windfarm, Co. Mayo
Type of Consultation: El4 Scoping
Proposed development: Proposed Keerglen Wind Farm, Ballycastle, Co. Mayo
Applicant: ABD Wind Ireland Ltd

Proposed Development: ABD Wind Ireland Ltd intends to apply for planning permission to Mayo
Couniy Council for

. The construction of 10 Mo, wind turbines located approximately 5.5km to the south of
Ballycastle and 15km north of Crossmoling, Co. Mayo. The turbines will have an overal|
ground to blada tip height of 185m,

* 1 Mo. permanent Met Mast

. 1 Mo. 38kV electrical substation

. Hardstandings/crane pads at each turbine

. Underground cabling required to connect the an-site substation te each of the wind turbines

* Connection to tha national electricity grid at the existing 38/110kV Tawnaghmore substation
in the townland of Tawnaghmore Upper, Co. Mayo

. Upgrading of existing site access tracks and construction of new site access tracks as
reguirad

. A temporary site compound and all associated works and

. All associated infrastructure and site development works

General Introduction

The following decuments should be taken Into consideration when preparing the Emvironmental
Impact Assessment Report:

. Guidelines on the information to be contained in EIS (2002), 187kb
. Advice Notes on Current Practice in the preparation of EI5 (2003), 435kb
L Guidelines for Planning Authorities and An Bord Pleandla on carrylng out Environme ntal
Impact Assessment
1
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it www housing gov.is/sites/default/files/publications/files/puidelines _for planning authariti Cz(\
es and an bord pleanala on canying out eia - august 2018 pdf /L

<&

EU publieaticn: Enviranmental Impact Assessment of Projects Guidance on the preparation of the . 9
Environmental Impact Assessment Report, ELL, 2017 Q/O
S
ttp:f/ec.europa.eu/environment/eia/pdf/EA_ guidance ElA report final.pdf /90
97

Adoption of the Directive (2014/52/EU] in April 2014 initiated a review of the above guldelines. The
draft new guidelines can be seen at;

hitp:/fwww.epa.ie/ pubs/consultation/reviewofd rafteisguideline sadvice notes

The applicant should alsa consider the findings of the High Court judgement issued in the judicial
review of the Derryadd Wind Farm. (2021 IEHC 390 [20202No, 557 JR] P, Sweetman v An Bord

Pleanala)

Generally the Environmental Impact Assessment should examine all likely significant impacts and
provide the following information for each:

al Description of the recaiving environment;

k) The nature and scale of the impact;

c) An assessment of the significance of the impact;
d) Froposed mitigation measures;

e Residual impacts.

Directive 2014/52/EU has an enhanced requirement to assess likely significant inpacts on
Population and Human Health, It is the experience of the Environmental Health Service (EHS) that
impacts on human health are often inadegquately assessed in EIAS InIreland. It is recormmended that
the wider determinants of health and wallbeing are considerad in a praportinnate manner when
considering the ElA. Guidance on wider determinants of health can ba found at v publichealth e

I addition to any likely significant negative impacts from the proposed developrnent any positive
likely significant impacts should alse be assessed.

The H5E will consider the final ELAR accompanying the planning application and will make comments
to Maya County Council on the methodology used for assessing the likely significant impacts and the
evaluation criteria used in assessing the significance of the impact.

This repart only comments on Environmental Health Impacts of the proposed development, It is
hased on an assessment of the correspondence submitted to this office dated 8 February 2022,

The Environmental Health Service [FHS) recomimends that the following matters are included and
assessed in the EIAR

# Public Consultation
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+ Decomimissioning phase
<
* Siting and focation of turbines <(\
Q.
= Opporiunity for Health Gain : <:)“9
@)
* Nolse & Vibration C%g
[
* Shadow Flicker 97

= Air Quality

» Surface and Groundwater Quality
» Geplogical Impacts

« Anciflary facilities

« Cumulative impacts

Public Consultation

It is strongly recommended that early and meaningful public consultation with the local commaunity
should be carried out to ensure all potentially significant Impacts have been adequately addressed. It
is nated that the proposed location of the wind farm development is rural and sparsely populated
The EHS regards it as of critical importance that all local residents are consulted and fnvited to
engage in the development process, The EIAR should indicate how consultation was endartaken with
the occupants of properties in the vicinity of the proposed developrmant.

All parties affected by the proposed development, including those who may benefit financially from
the project, must be fully informed of what the proposal entails, especially with regard to potential

impacts on surrounding areas,

Sensitive receptors and other staleholders should be identified to ensure all necessary and
appropriate mitigation measures are put in place to avold any complaints about the proposed wind
farm development in the future,

It is acknowledged that restrictions around public gatherings as a result of Covid 19 prevention
measures have Impacied on opportunities for public consulzation events during the last two yaars
and may continue to impact on such events in the early pert of 2022, However it is expactad that
meaningful public consultation, where the local community |s fully infarmed of the proposed
development, will be undertaken. Mambers of the public should be given sufficient opportunities to
express their views on the proposal wind farm.

The Environmental Impact Assessment Report {EIAR} should clearly demonstrate the link betwesn
public consultations and how those consultations have influenced the decision-making process in

the ElA,
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To assist with the consultation and planning process U is recommended that the applicant develops
a dedicated website for the proposed wind energy project. All correspondence, maps, project
updates and documentation including the EIAR should be uploaded to this site

Decommissioning Phase
The proposed operational lifetime of the wind farm should be indicated in the EIAR,

The EIAR should detall what the eventual f2te of the turbines and associated matenal will be, i.e. will
the material be recycled or how will it be disposed of.

Infarmation should also be provided regarding the proposed methodology to be vsed for the
disposal of the materials forming the foundations of the wind turbines,

The ElAR should indicate the proposed future use of the wind farm site at the end of the planning

peErmisson period.
Siting, Location and details of Turbines

The ElAR should include a map and a description of the propaosed focation of each of the propoesad
wind turhines within the 198 hectare site.

The Environmental Health Service expects that detalls (haight and medel) of the turbines to be
instalied will be available at the time planning permission ls sought and will be included in the EIAR,

Petails of turbine foundation structures, including depth, guantity and material to be wsed should be
included in the EIAR,

Oppoartunity for Health Gain

The EPA has issued guidance with regard to meeting the requirements of Directive 2014/52/EU
which assesses the impact of certain public and private projects on the environment. The proposed
development should be assessed with a view to the potentlal to include opportunities for health gain
within the site of the proposed wind farm by inclueding greenways, oycle-paths or walking trails
within the developmant site.

Assessment of Consideration of Alternatives

The EIAR should consider an assassment of alternatives. It is noted that ‘Alternatives Considerad” will
e assessed in Chapter 2 of the EIAR. The EHS recommends that altemative renewahla energy
options to onshore wind farms should be assessed as part of the EIAR,

MNoise & Vibration

The potential impacts for noise and vibration fram the propossd development on all noise sensitive
locations must be clearly identified in the EIAR. Impacts during both the propesed construction
phase and the operational phase should be addressed. The EIAR must also consider the
appropriatenass and effectiveness of all proposed mitigation measures to minimise noise and

wibration,
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A baseline nolse monitoring survey should be undertaken to establish the existing background noise QL
levels. Moise from any existing turhines.in the area should not be included as part of the back ground <(\O

lerels.

<9
In addition, an assessment of the predicted noise impacts during the constructicn phase and the /0
aperational phase of the proposed wind farm development must be undertaken which details the C%DO
change in the naise environment resulting from the proposed wind farm development. 97

The Draft Revised Wind Energy Developmeant Guldelines were published in Decamber 2019, Whilst
these have yet to be adopted, any proposed wind farm development should hawve consideration of

the draft Guidelines.

https:/fwenw housing gov.ie/sites/default/files/public.

consultation/files/drafl reviced wind enerpy development guidelines december 2019 pdf

Shadow Flicker

It is recommended that a shadow Micker assessment is undertaken to identify any dwellings and
sensitive receptors which may be impacted by shadow fiicker. The assessment must include all
proposed mitigation measures. Dwellings should include all ocoupied properties and any existing or
proposed properties for which planning consent has been granted for construction or
refurbishment.

It is recommended that turbine selection will be based on the most advanced available technology
that permits shut down during times when residents are exposed to shadaw flicker. As a result no
dwelling should be exposed to shadow fMicker,

Aijr Quality

Due Lo the nature of the proposed construction works generation of airborne dust has the potential
to have significant impacts on sensitive receptors, & Construction Environmental Management Plan
(CEMP) should be included in the ELAR which details dust contral and mitigation measures, Measures

should include:

Sweeping of hard road surfaces

* Provision of a water bowser on site, regular spraying of haul roads
. Wheel washing facilities at site exit
¢ Restrict speed on site
* Provide covers to all delivery trucks to minimise dust genaration
- Inspect and clean public roads in the vicinity If necessary
. tdaterial stockpiling provided with adequate protection from the wind
. Dust monitoring at the site baundary
. Truck inspection and maintenance plan
5
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. Details of a road maintenance agreement between the wind farm operator and the Local 6\0 6\
7
Roads Authority to clarify responsibility for the upkeep and repair of access roads during the %\O
construction phase of the project. : <_'>
%
surface and Ground Water Quality c$><_j
[

The proposed development has the potential to have a significant impact on the quality of both
surface and ground water. All drinking water sources, both surface and ground water, must be
identified. Public and Group Water Scheme sources and supplies should be identified. Measures to
ensure that all sources and supplies are protected should be described. The Environmental Health
Service recommends that a walk over survey of the site is undertaken in addition to a desktop
analysis of Geological Survey of Ireland data in order to identify the location of private wells used for

drinking water purposes,

Any potential significant impacts to drinking water sources should be assessed. Details of bedrock,
overburden, vulnerability, groundwater flows, aquifers and catchment areas should be considered

when assessing potential impacts and any proposed mitigation measures,

Geological impacts

A detailed assessment of the current ground stability of the site for the proposed wind farm
extension and all proposed mitigation measures should be detailed In the EIAR. The assessment
should include the impact construction work may have on the future stability of ground conditions,
taking into consideration extreme weather events, site drainage and the potential for soil erosion.

Reference is made to a peat slide which occurred near Ballybofey in Co. Donegal on November 13th
2020 which may have been linked to construction activity at Meenbog Wind Farm. Potential impacts
on water supply associated with contamination following a peat slide include sedimentation and

alteration of pH levels.

The Environmental Health Service recommends that a detailed Peat Stability Assessment should be
undertaken to assess the suitability of the soil for the proposed development. The EIAR should
include provision for a peat stability monitoring programme to identify early signs of potential bog
slides (‘pre-failure indicators’ see the Scottish Government’s ‘Peat Landslide Hazard and Risk
Assessments: Best Practice Guide for Proposed Electricity Developments 2017)

https://www.gov.scot/binaries/content/documents/govscot/publications/advice-and-

guidance/2017/04/peat-landslide-hazard-risk-assessments-best-practice-guide-proposed-
electricity/d -pdf; -pdf; n

Anclllary Facilities

The EIAR should include details of the location of all site office, construction compound, fuel storage
depot, sanitary accommodation and canteen, First Aid facilities, disposal of wastewater and the
provision of a potable water supply to the site canteen,
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Curmulative Impacts

Table 3.2: “Wind Farms within 20km of the Development’ of the Scoping Report indicates that there

are & number of existing and proposed wind farms within the vicinity of the proposed development. .
All existing or proposed wind farm developments in the vicinity should be clearly identified in the T?Q
EIAR. /Od)
)
The impact on sensitive receptors of the proposed development combined with aother wind farm %7

developmants in the vicinity should be considered. The EIAR should include a detailad assessment of
any likely significant cumulative impacts of the proposed renewable energy development.

The EIAR should state clearly if there is any future proposal to further extend the proposed Keerglen
Wind Farm.

Lledlypn HaE

Evelyn Keane

Emviranmental Health Officer
H5E West

S8 Many's HO,

Old Westport Road,
Castlebar,

Iayo.

Environmental Health Officer
Environment OLU
Ennistymaon Health Cantre

Ennistyman
Ca. Clare
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Department of Housing, Local Government and Heritage

Our Ref: G Pre00025/2022 (Please quote in all related correspondence)

A Chara

I acknowledge receipt of your recent consultation.

In the event of observations, you will receive a co-ordinated heritage-related response by email-irom Development
Applications Unit (DAU).

The normal target turnaround for pre-planning and other general consultations is six weeks from dateef receipt. In
relation to general consultations from public bodies under the European Communities (Environmental Assessment
of Certain Plans and Programmes) Regulations 2004 to 2011, the Department endeavours to meet deadline dates,
where requested.

If you have not heard from DAU and wish to receive an update, please email manager.dau@housing.gov.ie.
Regards

Diarmuid

Diarmuid Buttimer

Executive Officer )

An Roinn Tithiochta, Rialtais Aitiuil agus Oidhreachta

Department of Housing, Local Government and Heritage

Aonad na nlarratas ar Fhorbairt

Development Applications Unit

Oifigi an Rialtais

Government Offices

Béthar an Bhaile Nua, Loch Garman, Contae Loch Garman, Y35 AP90
Newtown Road, Wexford, County Wexford, Y35 AP90

Diarmuid.Buttimer@housing.gov.ie
Manager.DAU@housing.gov.ie

From: David Clarke <David.Clarke@abo-wind.com>
Sent: Tuesday 8 February 2022 13:26

Subject: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

cAUTION: This eMail originated from outside your organisation and the BTS Managed Desktop service. Do not click on any links or
open any attachments unless you recognise the sender or are expecting the email and know that the content is safe. If you are in
any doubt, please contact the OGCIO IT Service Desk at help.it@per.gov.ie

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

Any unauthorised copying of this message or unauthorised distribution of the information contained herein is prohibited

2 2% s RE: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm - Message (HTML)

File Message  Help Q  Tell me what you want to do

m IR [ Meeting =) I s ) Find i}
) =] & DF\M« Dr‘"dtD—Nt S 53 Related ~ A I ~
S o Mave i NCEE Categorize Follow e Read Immersive | Translate | Zoom

£2 June > 1 More ~ ~ [P Adtions~ Up~ | [ Select~ Aloud  Reader -

Archive | Reply Reply F
All

Delete Respond Move Tags. &l Edting Immersive Language | Zoom

RE: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm
Housing Manager DAU <Manager.DAU@housing.gov.ie> ] Bl Fread
To @ David Clark T

LG
(]

Follow up. Start by Monday 15 Due by Monday 15

Our Ref: G Pre00025/2022 (Please quote in all related correspondence)

A Chara

I acknowledge receipt of your recent consultation.

In the event of abservations, you will receive a co-ordinated heritage-related response by email from Development Applications Uit (DAU).

The normal target turnaround for pre-planning and other general consultations is six weeks from date of receipt. In relation to general consultations from public bodies under the European Communities (Environmental Assessment of Certain Plans and 2004 to 2011, the
endeavours to meet deadline dates, where requested.

If you have not heard from DAU and wish to receive an update, please email manager.dau@housing gov.e.

Regards

Diarmuid

An Roinn Tithiochta, Rialtais Aitiiil agus Oidhreachta
Department of Housing, Local Government and Heritage
Aonad na nlarratas ar Fhorbairt
\ppiications U
als
vernment Offices
BGthar an Bhaile Nua, Loch Garman, Contae Loch Garman, Y35 APS0
Newlown Road, We» unty Wexford, Y35 AP90
Diarmuid Buttimer@housing gov.ie
Manager. DAU@housing.gov.ie
From: David Clarke <David Clarke@abo-wind.com>
Sent: Tuesday 8 February 2022 13:26
Subject: Consultation - Keerglen Wind Farm

ted i i

catmon: This eMail originat d the BTS any links or unless you recognise the sender or are expecting the email and know that the content is safe. 3 the OGCIO T help it@per. goviie

Dear Consultee,

'ABO Wind Ireland Ltd. (ABO Wind) are seeking to develop a Wind Farm within the townlands of Keerglen, Co. Mayo.

Accardingly, we have the Environmental Impact ment (E1A) process to suppart a forthcoming planning application that will he submitted to Mayo County Council. The propased wind farm site is located circa 5.5 km to the south of Ballycastle and 15 km north of the village of Crossmolina, County
Mayo.

Further details of the proposed project can be found in the attached Scoping Report. A Site Location Plan, Site Layout Plan and Grid Connection Route Drawing are also attached for your information.
We are consulting with you on this proposal as it may be of interest to you (or your organisation). While you will be presented with the opportunity to make a submission on the propesed development as part of the statutory planning process, we wanted to engage with you early in the process to make you aware
of the emerging proposals and to provide you the opportunity to comment as necessary. If there are any key issues which you consider should be addressed during th of the Impact Assessment Report (EIAR) we would welcome your input at this stage.

Should this consultation request be directed to another contact within your organisation we would be grateful if you could forward this information on to them, or respond to this email and provide us with the appropriate contact.
if you have any queries, or require any additional information, please do not hesitate to get in touch.

Kind regards,

David
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